

6A-10.0352 Linking Industry to Nursing Education (LINE) Fund.

(1) Purpose. The purpose of this rule is to set forth the requirements relating to the Linking Industry to Nursing Education (LINE) Fund, which is intended to meet local, regional, and state workforce demand by recruiting faculty and clinical preceptors, increasing the capacity of high-quality nursing education programs, and increasing the number of nursing education program graduates who are prepared and licensed to enter the workforce.

(2) Definitions.

(a) "Health care partner" means a health care provider as defined in Section 768.38(2), F.S. For purposes of the LINE Fund, the health care partner must be ~~located and~~ licensed to operate in the state and make a monetary or nonmonetary contribution to the postsecondary institution.

(b) "Contributor" means any health care partner or other person or entity that makes monetary or nonmonetary contributions to the participating institution for the purposes outlined in Section 1009.8962, F.S.

(b) through (d) renumbered (c) through (e) No change.

(f)(e) "Eligible purpose" means student scholarships; recruitment of additional faculty and preceptors; increasing program enrollment, program completion, and licensure exam passage rates; equipment; and simulation centers; and internships. Funds may not be used for the construction of new buildings, but may be used to expand, retrofit, or upgrade existing facilities if the proposal will either increase enrollment or improve the educational space for an institution's nursing education students. Construction of new facilities is not considered eligible.

(g)(f) No change.

(h)(g) "Health care partner's Contribution" means the monetary or nonmonetary contributions dollars provided by an eligible health care partner or other person or entity to an eligible postsecondary institution.

(3) No change.

(4) Proposals. If funds are designated in the General Appropriations Act, the Department shall solicit proposals for LINE funds. To be eligible for an allocation, proposals must include the following components which will be used to prioritize funding along with the criteria established in subsection (5).

(a) To participate, an institution's president, chief administrative officer, or designee must submit a timely and completed proposal to the Department in a format prescribed by the Florida Department of Education.

(b)(a) No change.

(c)(b) Narrative explaining how the institution plans to use the contributor's health care partner contribution and

LINE matching funds to address the criteria in subsection (5). The narrative must outline how the institution will improve the likelihood that graduates will successfully join the state or local workforce, either through employment with a health care partner or by other means.

~~(d)~~~~(e)~~ No change.

~~(e)~~~~(d)~~ Documentation of contributor's monetary or nonmonetary ~~health care partner's~~ contribution. Documentation must indicate either the cash amount or a signed agreement for a nonmonetary contribution the contributor ~~health care partner~~ plans to contribute ("pledged") or has contributed ("fulfilled"). For the contributions, the following conditions apply:

1. If the contribution has been pledged but not been fulfilled at the time of application, acceptable documentation includes a scope of work, copies of irrevocable pledge letters, or letters of intent; the documentation must indicate the timeline for the fulfillment of the contribution.

2. If the contribution has been pledged and fulfilled at the time of application, acceptable documentation includes financial statements, bank statements, budget reports, or bank letters that show the cash transaction(s).

3. Nonmonetary contributions are limited to the following:

a. The value of the donated use of health care partner employees as nursing education program instructors or preceptors.

b. The value of the donated use of a health care partner's space or equipment for a nursing education program.

c. The value of the donated educational or simulation equipment.

d. Other similar quantifiable donated goods and services from a contributor deemed by the Department to be good faith contributions that support the goals of the LINE Fund as outlined in subsection (1).

4. If the contribution is nonmonetary, objective verification of the value of that contribution must be submitted. The Department may require additional information or a third-party appraisal if the documentation is insufficient to verify the value of the nonmonetary contribution.

5. A proposal may not be comprised solely of nonmonetary contributions.

(f) All proposals must abide by the Project Application and Amendment Procedures for Federal and State Programs (GREEN BOOK).

(5) Review Process.

(a)The Department will evaluate and rank, by institution type, each completed and timely submitted proposal on

the extent to which the application supports the following minimum criteria, where applicable:

1. Whether monetary and nonmonetary contributions ~~funds~~ committed by the contributor ~~health care partner~~ will contribute to an eligible purpose.

2. How the institution plans to use the funds, or nonmonetary contributions, including how such funds or nonmonetary contributions will be utilized to increase student enrollment and program completion.

3. How the health care partner will onboard and retain graduates or otherwise improve the likelihood that graduates will successfully join the state or local workforce.

4. How the funds or nonmonetary contributions will be used to expand the institution's nursing education programs to meet local, regional, or state workforce demands. If applicable, this shall include advanced education nursing programs and how the funds or nonmonetary contribution will increase the number of faculty and clinical preceptors and planned efforts to utilize the clinical placement process established in Section 14.36, F.S.

(b) No change.

(c) Monetary contributions from contributors shall receive priority when awarding matching funds to institutions.

(6) Award Notice. The Department will award grant funding on a dollar-to-dollar basis, up to the amount of the fund or the fair market value of the nonmonetary contribution, including notifications made on a rolling or periodic basis subject to available funds, to eligible institutions ~~based on subsections (4) and (5)~~. The Department will notify institutions of the approved proposals and award amounts.

(a) Subject to available funds, for every monetary or nonmonetary contribution to an institution by a contributor, the funds shall provide a dollar-to-dollar match to the participating institution to implement the activities outlined in the institution's approved proposal.

(b) If deemed to meet the long-term goals of the LINE Fund, the Department may award funds for an approved proposal for up to 2 academic years immediately following the academic year within which the initial approval is granted, for a total of 3 academic years. If the Department approves a multi-year award to an institution, the award amount in subsequent years is subject to a LINE Fund appropriation and the continued notification of the contributor's contribution to match the multiyear award of state funds.

(7) Disbursements. Prior to the release of funds to an institution that has been awarded LINE funds, the institution must provide to the Department documentation of the contributor ~~health care partner~~ providing the monetary or nonmonetary ~~cash~~ contribution to the institution. If the contribution is monetary, then it may be given to the institution

in quarterly payments, so long as the amount received in the first quarter is at least a one-fourth the total contribution amount. Acceptable documentation includes financial statements, bank statements, budget reports, or bank letters that show the cash transaction(s). To accept nonmonetary contributions as matching funds, the applicant must provide documentation of the contribution in dollars. The Department will certify that the proposed contribution directly supports the goals of the LINE Fund outlined in subsection (1) and Section 1009.8962, F.S., and may require additional documentation to verify fair market value including, but not limited to, a third party appraisal. If an institution receives a nonmonetary contribution which is given over time, the institution must submit to the Department documentation that the contribution was fulfilled at the end of each academic term. Funds will be released in accordance with the General Appropriations Act or, no more frequently than on a quarterly basis.

(8) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 1001.02(1), (2)(n), 1009.8962(10) FS. Law Implemented 1009.8962 FS. History--New 9-20-22, Amended 9-26-23, 7-2-24, 12-21-25.